
Mississippi Valley Workforce Development Board 

Executive Committee Agenda 
Tuesday, January 16, 2024, at 4:00 p.m. 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86524833841?pwd=Y3o2citnU3djWXVuMHI1NEpZRlYrdz09 

Meeting ID: 865 2483 3841  Passcode: 526664  
One tap mobile: 16469313860,,86524833841# 

Call to Order Dennis Duke 
Roll Call Tyler Lanz 
*Consent Agenda Dennis Duke 

Excused Absences  
Approval of Agenda   
Approval of Previous Minutes 

Standing Committee Reports 
Youth Committee Jacob Nye 
Operations Committee  Matthew Nicol 
Finance Committee Ryan Drew 
Business Committee  Mandy Parchert 

New Business 
*One Stop Operator KPI Report (Page 9) Nick Clayton 
*Retrain & Retain Policy Modification (Page 14) Tyler Lanz 
*RFPs Miranda Swafford 
*Travel – Meal Revisions (Page 26) Miranda Swafford 
Hired & Non-Owned Auto Coverage (Page 28) Tyler Lanz 

Other Business   
Public Comment 
Adjourn Dennis Duke 

*Items Requiring a Vote ** Items Requiring a Roll Call Vote

Accommodations 
Accommodation is available upon request for individuals with disabilities. If you need accommodation, please 
contact Mandy Tripp at mandy@mississippivalleyworkforce.org or at 1-844-967-5365 option 3. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86524833841?pwd=Y3o2citnU3djWXVuMHI1NEpZRlYrdz09
mailto:mandy@mississippivalleyworkforce.org


Mississippi Valley Workforce Development Board 

Executive Committee 
Meeting Minutes  

Thursday, December 14, 2023, at 2:00 p.m. 

Members Present: Dennis Duke, Jacob Nye, Cindy Whalen, Mandy Parchert, Matthew Nicol, 
and Kirby Phillips 
Members Absent: Ryan Drew (unexcused) 
CEOs Present: Jim Irwin 
Staff Present: Miranda Swafford, Executive Director and Tyler Lanz, Communications Assistant 
Guest: Cherisa Price-Wells, Equus Regional Director, Shannon Weaver, Operations Supervisor 

CALLED TO ORDER 
Duke called the meeting to order at 2:04 p.m.  

QUORUM 
The committee had a quorum to conduct business. 

*CONSENT AGENDA
The consent agenda included approval of the agenda and approval of previous meeting minutes.
Nicol made a motion to approve the consent agenda, seconded by Nye, and the motion carried.

NEW BUSINESS 

*ADULT/DISLOCATED WORKER PROGRAM BUDGETS
Weaver presented the modified Adult and Dislocated Worker program budgets to include the
FY24 funds. Weaver discussed that the Business Service Consultant in Davenport is hoping to
retire, but has agreed to help train a successor, so a part-time position has been created using the
cost savings from positions that have remained vacant. Whalen inquired whether the budget
includes funds to develop a youth space in Burlington, and Weaver advised that was not included
in the Youth program budget this year. There was a discussion about merit increases for staff, and
Weaver advised those were included in the original budgets approved in August. Nicol made a
motion to approve the Adult and Dislocated Worker program budgets, seconded by Parchert, and
motion carried.

OTHER BUSINESS 
Swafford advised the committee that Andrea Taylor is no longer employed with the board staff as 
of 12/8/2023. 
Weaver advised the Federal mileage rate will be increasing to $0.67 per mile in 2024. 



Mississippi Valley Workforce Development Board   Page 2 of 2 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT  
There was no public comment. 
 
*ADJOURN  
Nye made a motion to adjourn, seconded by Nicol, and the motion carried. Duke adjourned the 
meeting at 2:17 p.m. 
 



Standing Committee Reports



 
 

 
 

Mississippi Valley Workforce Development Board 
 
 

 

Youth Committee Report  
Prepared for January 16, 2024 Executive Committee Meeting 

 
    

 
Items of Discussion  

• Q1 Performance was reviewed, and Employment deliverables were not quite met, but exceeded 
their goal for Median Earnings and Measurable Skills Gain. 

• We are looking into texting services to incorporate into the current outreach strategy, following 
up on responses to the youth focus group conducted in October. 

• A video project has been undertaken with Phalanx Outreach Solutions to spotlight the Youth 
Work Based Learning program. 

 
Equus Report (December) 

• 5 OSY enrolled in December and 1 ISY. 0 entered into Occupational Skills Training. 0 entered 
work-based learning. 

• 21 Stipends were paid, and 24 incentives were paid out. 
• Outcomes were 2 CNA, 1 EMT, 1 Esthetician, and 1 HiSED credential, as well as 3 new 

unsubsidized employments. 



Mississippi Valley Workforce Development Board 

Operations Committee Meeting Report 

Prepared for January 16, 2024 Executive Committee Meeting 

Committee Highlights 

• Q1 performance metrics were reviewed for Adult and Dislocated Worker programs.
Adult program hit their deliverables; Dislocated Worker program did not quite meet their
Employment goals for 2nd and 4th Quarter or their Credential Attainment.

One-Stop Operator Report Review (November) 

• Burlington averaged 36 visitors per day and Davenport had an average of 86 visitors per
day in November.

• Facebook’s total reach in Davenport was 3,412 and Burlington’s Facebook total reach
was 9,167 in November.

• Customer satisfaction was 87.5%

Adult/DW/RR Report (November) 

• November had 0 Enrollments in Adult and 0 in Dislocated Worker due to lack of funding.
• 1 participant entered into WBL.
• 0 participants entered Occupation Skills Training. They have achieved 69% of the goal.
• Legacy in Action reports a 97.92% customer satisfaction rate.

Title III Review (November) 

• Burlington office served 329 distinct users in November with Davenport serving 1,089.
• There were 92 Title III enrollments for Burlington and 187 for Davenport in November.



Mississippi Valley Workforce Development Board 

Finance Committee Report 

Prepared for January 16, 2024 Executive Committee Meeting 

October Invoices Approved: 
• Adult $60,679.20
• DW $36,543.23
• Youth $111,715.20
• OSO $8,438.67
• Fiscal Agent $3,984.00 for 35.0 hours.

November Invoices Approved: 
• Adult $42,961.72
• DW $48,507.15
• Youth $106,242.17
• OSO $7,626.85
• Fiscal Agent $4,366.00 for 38.25 hours.



Mississippi Valley Workforce Development Board 

Business Committee Report  
Prepared for January 16, 2024 – Executive Committee Meeting 

• Michelle’s Vocational Placement application was accepted and the grant amount of $3,800 was
approved.

• Titan Machinery application was accepted and the grant amount of $3,600 was approved.

• Dynamic Tube application was accepted and the full grant amount of $10,000 was approved.

• Motion passed for modifications to the Retrain and Retain Grant policy to remove the Iowa
residency requirement for employees.

• The Business Service Teams held their quarterly combined meeting and reviewed their Strategic
Plan and SWOT analysis, so those strategies have begun to be implemented.



*One Stop Operator KPI Report
Documents Included: KPI Report for Q2

Action Requested: Review KPIs and determine if they have 
been met.



 
 

 
 

Mississippi Valley Workforce Development Board 
 
 

One-Stop Operator Key Performance Indicator Report 
Executive Committee Meeting Date: _January 16, 2024_Period of Performance: _Oct-Nov-
Dec 23_ 

The determination of whether or not one-stop operator performance measures have been met will be made 
on a quarterly basis by the executive committee. To be determined to have satisfactory performance, the 
sub-recipient must show satisfactory progress in 11 of the 13 measures shown below as determined by the 
executive committee at the January, April, July, and October 2024 meetings.  

Key Performance Indicators Y or N  One-Stop Operator Comments 

1. Document at least 5 hours 
quarterly learning and 
updating knowledge on core 
and required partner 
programs, or IowaWORKS 
services.  

 

• 11/8/2023 IWD MSFW career planner presented to staff and had a 
follow up discussion regarding services and role with OSO. 1.0 hr 

• 11/17/2023 OSO attended SCC’s Keokuk campus to learn about their 
iCART classes and updates to what is to come. 1.0 hr 

• 12/5/2023 OSO toured EICC facility and discussed classes with EICC 
Director of Workforce Development CTE 0.5 hr 

• 12/19 OSO and partner staff attended SCC West Burlington campus and 
met with program leadership to discuss the various programs offered 
and then toured the campus. 2.25 hr 

• 12/21/2023 OSO met with Title III Ops Manager to discuss new pilot 
program and processes that staff are working on. 1.0 hr 

• 12/21/2023 OSO met with EICC Director of Workforce Development to 
further discuss different programs EICC offers and discussed the 
different campuses EICC has and what they offer. CTE 0.5 hr 

 
 

2. Coordinate 3 core partner 
meetings quarterly and 1 
required partner meeting 
quarterly to discuss ways to 
reach common goals (i.e., 
performance, financial, 
customer satisfaction), 
leverage resources across 
partner organizations, discuss 
programmatic and financial 
issues faced by the partners as 
well as any misunderstandings 
that may exist between 
participating partners 
(troubleshooting of issues), 
and share details on flagship 
programs, events, and 

 

Core Partner Meetings: 
• 10/24/2023 
• 11/28/2023 
• 12/19/2023 
 
Required Partner Meetings: 
• 11/13/2023 



Mississippi Valley Workforce Area Page 2 of 4 

initiatives and discuss ways to 
reduce duplication of services 
and further integration across 
programs 

 
 

3. Assist the board with ensuring 
that the Memorandum of 
Understanding and all 
Attachments with all one-stop 
partners is executed, adhered 
to by all parties, as well as 
tracking completion, updates 
and expiration of activities 
outlined. Systems and tools 
should be developed to show 
progress toward goals. 

 

 
The OSO has worked with board staff and partners to update the 

MOU as well as reviewing the current MOU and addressing 
any lapses to include having partners send in updated SOP’s on 
their referral process. 

 
4. Implement strategies to 

improve information sharing 
among partner programs and 
relationship building activities 
to assist in the integration of 
one-stop partner programs to 
include but not limited to a 
quarterly Newsletter for 
distribution to partners, 
including collection of relevant 
information, development of 
the newsletter, maintenance 
of the recipient list and 
distribution. 
 

 

The OSO has implemented cross trainings with partner 
programs that allow staff across partners to develop familiarity 
and opportunities for information sharing. This was highlighted 
by the SCC West Burlington Campus in which center staff met 
with SCC program administrators to discuss the various 
programs offered. This also gave center staff points of contact 
at SCC. The OSO is looking to expand on these opportunities. 
The OSO has also discussed areas of improvement regarding 
the referral system and sharing the referral form with partner 
leadership. 

 
5. Coordinate a minimum of 4 

cross training activities for 
center staff/individuals each 
quarter and two in-person in-
service days each program 
year. Create and manage an 
innovative solution to educate 

 

• 10/30/2023 IDB Cross Training 
• 11/8/2023 MSFW Update and training 
• 12/13/2023 OWDS Cross training about new presentations 
• 12/19/2023 SCC CTE Cross Training and Tour 
 
In-Service 

• 10/09/2023 



Mississippi Valley Workforce Area Page 3 of 4 

partners (and internal staff) on 
the services provided by 
IowaWORKS as well as the 
other one-stop partners’ 
organizations. 

 
 

6. Maintain a customer 
satisfaction survey of at least 
85% and provide updates 
regarding issues pertaining to 
customer complaints that are 
substantive to the required 
partners operating in the 
comprehensive, affiliate, and 
satellite One-Stop Centers. 

 

 

October 88.9% (16/18) 
November 87.5% (14/16) 
December 69.6% (16/23) 
 
Total 80.7% (46/57) 

 
7. Collaborate on and oversee 

the center Wednesday 
morning meetings and 
manage meeting spaces, 
maintain the schedule and 
resolve conflicts related to use 
of the rooms. 

 

 

The OSO has worked with IWD and partner leadership to host 
Wednesday morning meetings. The OSO also has worked with 
IWD staff statewide to plan out the state Wednesday morning 
meetings for the next year. The OSO works with staff and 
center leadership to manage meeting spaces and improve 
processes. 

8. Have a physical presence at 
the Davenport Center at least 
9 times quarterly. 

 

 

• 10/4/2023 Attended and assisted at the Clinton Youth Event. 

• 10/11/2023 Checked in with center leadership and staff. 

• 10/26/2023 Met with board staff to work on MOU document. 

• 11/29/2023 Checked in with center leadership and staff. 

• 12/05/2023 Met with partner leadership at EICC and checked in with 
center staff. 

• 12/07/2023 Checked in with center leadership and staff. 

• 12/13/2023 Checked in with center leadership and staff. 

• 12/15/2023 Checked in with center leadership and staff. 

• 12/20/2023 Checked in with center leadership and staff. 
 

9. Submit monthly executive 
summary and monthly reports 
(including referrals, VOS 
numbers, hiring events, 
customer satisfaction levels 
and comments, cross training 
activities, continuous 

 The OSO submits, presents and reviews monthly executive 
summaries and monthly reports for committee meetings. 



Mississippi Valley Workforce Area Page 4 of 4 

improvement activities, MOU 
updates, workshops, social 
media reach, 
accomplishments, 
improvements, challenges and 
recommendations to the 
board and CEOs and attend 
committee meetings to 
present and review reports. 

 
 

10. Meet with the executive 
director on a weekly basis. 

 

 The OSO and the Executive Director have a standing weekly 
meeting on Tuesdays at 3:00 p.m. 

 
11. Participate in the boards social 

media strategy by gathering 
information from partners, 
scheduling meetings, posting 
for partners without access to 
the platforms, and develop 
outreach strategy for center 
partners as outlined in the 
MOU and adhere to MVWDB 
Branding Guide. 

 

 

The OSO is a member of the MVWA social media team and 
consistently works with it’s other members to ensure branding 
guide is adhered too. OSO has also organized monthly 
meetings with social media team to plan out the following 
month’s posts. 

 
12. Complete center Equal 

Opportunity Officer activities 
as directed by the EOO officer. 
 

 The OSO has worked with EOO to ensure accessibility in the center 
and is available for any other activities as needed. 

 
13. Complete an annual 

assessment of the One Stop 
Certification standards and 
recommend and implement 
continuous improvement 
activities as it relates to 
Certification processes. 

 

 

The OSO and Board Staff worked together to assess One Stop 
Certification standards as they relate to current states of both 
centers. Areas of improvement were identified. OSO has 
worked with partners on area’s of improvement identified by 
the WINTAC that align with one stop certification including 
working on the framework of integrated resource teams. 

 

Board Chair Signature: ___________________________________________Date: ________________ 



*Retrain & Retain Policy
Modifiation
Reason: Business Committee moved to remove Iowa 
Residency requirement for employees.

Documents Included: Current policy

Action Requested: Approve the policy modification.



Mississippi Valley Workforce Development Board 

Page 1 of 10 
MVWA – Retrain & Retain Grant Program 

RETRAIN & RETAIN GRANT PROGRAM 
POLICY, GUIDELINES, AND PROCEDURES 

Approved Date: 11/21/2022 

Effective Date: 1/1/2023 

Amended Date: 7/11/2023 

PURPOSE  
The Mississippi Valley Workforce Development Board (MVWDB) establishes this local policy, 
guidance, and procedures for the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Incumbent 
Worker Training (IWT) Program as outlined in WIOA Section 134 et.al. [29 U.S.C. 3174]. This 
program will be referred to as the Retrain & Retain (R&R) Grant Program in the Mississippi 
Valley Workforce Area (MVWA). 
BACKGROUND

Incumbent Worker Definition - An Incumbent Worker is a person who is currently employed and 
could benefit themselves and their employer by upgrading their skills through training. The 
training should give the employee the opportunity for advancement and wage gains within their 
company. Incumbent Workers will be referred to in the R&R Grant Program as “employees.” 
R&R Grants are designed to meet the special requirement of an employer to retain a skilled 
workforce or avert the need to lay off employees by assisting the workers in obtaining the skills 
necessary to retain employment. Grants provide both workers and employers with the 
opportunity to build and maintain a quality workforce. Mississippi Valley R&R Grant Program is 
a business-driven program designed to meet the needs of an employer or group of employers. 
There is an expectation that the employee will be promoted or retained by the company after they 
receive training. Ideally, this would also create additional back-fill opportunities for other workers.  
The program is intended to offset a portion, via reimbursement, of the business’s cost to train and 
upgrade the skills of its employees. Eligible businesses must demonstrate that by receiving 
funding assistance through the program, their business will not only improve the skills of their 
workers but also improve their business processes and competitiveness and decrease the risk of 
permanent layoffs. 
PROGRAM OVERVIEW 
Grant funds are limited and therefore will be awarded through an application process. 
The maximum award per grant, per year, is $10,000 and the initial training agreement 
duration may not exceed 12 months. The maximum award may be adjusted based on 
funding availability, each program year. A notification will be posted on 
www.mississippivalleyworkforce.org when funds are no longer available.  

http://www.mississippivalleyworkforce.org/


Page 2 of 10 
MVWA – Retrain & Retain Grant Program 

When workers lack necessary training and businesses experience skill gaps, the company’s 
ability to compete, expand and retain workers can be compromised. Mississippi Valley R&R 
Grant Program addresses such needs. The Grant Program is to provide funding for continuing 
education and training of employees at existing Iowa businesses with physical locations in the 
MVWA. The program will provide reimbursement grants to businesses that pay for preapproved 
direct training-related costs.  
The program helps established MVWA businesses to upgrade the skills of current employees, 
which provides enormous benefits including: 
For employers: 

• Increased Competitiveness 

• Skilled Workforce 

• Increased Productivity 

• Increased Profits 

• Company Growth 

• Reduced Turnover 
For employees: 

• Advancement Opportunities 

• Increased Job Opportunities 

• Industry Recognized Credentials 

• Job Retention 

• Transportable/Transferrable Skills 

• Improved Morale and Work Culture 
ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES 
An eligible employee is one who is directly employed by the company at a facility located within 
the MVWA and meets these requirements: 

1. Employee must be at least 18 years of age. 
2. A citizen of the United States or a non-citizen whose status permits employment in the 

United States 
3. Iowa resident  
4. Employee must work at least 32 hours per week 
5. Employee must have an established employment history with the employer for six 

months or more and receives a W-2. 
6. Employee must be committed to attending all trainings. 
7. Employee must earn an hourly wage above the state minimum wage. 
8. Employee must agree to cooperate with data collection requirements. 

TylerLanz
Cross-Out

TylerLanz
Highlight



Page 3 of 10 
MVWA – Retrain & Retain Grant Program 

*An employee does not have to meet the eligibility requirements for participation in career and 
training services for Adults and Dislocated Workers under WIOA unless they are also enrolled as 
a participant in the WIOA Adult or Dislocated Worker program. 
**There is an exception to the six-month requirement: In the event, R&R funding is being 
provided to a cohort of employees, not every employee in the cohort must have an established 
employment history with the employer for six months or more, as long as a majority (at least 
51%) of those employees being trained meet the employment history requirement. 
***R&R funding can also be used for underemployed if workers if the use of the funding 
focuses on increasing skills for underemployed frontline workers in an effort to advance these 
workers to more skilled positions with the same employer; or workers who would prefer full-
time work but are working part-time for economic reasons.  
INELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES  

• Anyone who receives a 1099 Form: or 

• Those who are placed through a temporary agency. 
EMPLOYER ELIGIBILITY 
Employers applying for an R&R Grant must meet the following criteria: 

• Financially viable, private sector employers and certain nonprofit and local government 
entities (e.g., a nonprofit or county hospital) are eligible to receive R&R funds.  

• The business or businesses must have been in operation for 12 months, not currently or 
recently experiencing bankruptcy, be current on all local, state, and federal tax 
obligations, and not appear on any federal suspensions or debarment lists.  

• An eligible business must be located in Iowa and registered with the Iowa Secretary of 
State Office and have a physical location in the Mississippi Valley Workforce Area 
(MVWA).  

• Businesses are encouraged to provide training to a group of employees and not individual 
training, although the number of employees in the company will be taken into 
consideration.  

• Businesses should also demonstrate a commitment to retain or avert the layoff of 
employees receiving training. 

Companies that are in the process of a layoff or have had a layoff in the last six months are not 
eligible for the R&R Grant Program (excludes temporary hires or contract workers.) If a layoff 
occurs in a company while they have an open R&R Grant, the current workers will be able to 
complete the training.  
MULTIPLE BUSINESS APPLICATIONS  
A group of employers who need the same training for their workers may submit a joint 
application. Multiple businesses can collaborate and apply for a collaborative training grant. 
The proposal for the common request must:  

• Train employees of at least two different businesses, with one of those businesses 
designated as the Lead Applicant.  



Page 4 of 10 
MVWA – Retrain & Retain Grant Program 

• Include employees of the Lead Applicant in the training.  

• Include training descriptions and outcomes that address the employees from all 
businesses impacted by the proposed common training  

• Include information on each business that will be part of the training. 
A business may be treated as a single company or multiple companies depending on the number 
of locations and Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN). If each location operates under 
a different FEIN, each location will be considered a separate company and will need to submit 
separate applications to receive separate awards. If the locations operate under one FEIN, it will 
be considered one company and will therefore need to join its training efforts, submit one 
application, and receive one award. 
INELIGIBLE EMPLOYERS  
The following businesses are not eligible to apply for funds under this program: 

• Not-for-profit agencies or organizations. [Note: This does not apply to hospitals operated 
by local government entities in the State of Iowa or nonprofit hospitals) 

• Entities whose administrations only comprise volunteers. 

• Local Workforce Development Boards and their administrative entities. 

• Labor unions. 

• Federal, state, county, or city governmental entities [Note: This does not apply to 
hospitals operated by local government entities in the State of Iowa or nonprofit 
hospitals) 

• Businesses that received an R&R Grant award in the current program year. 
FUNDING CONSIDERATIONS  
Funding considerations shall be given to the following: 

• Businesses that provide employees with opportunities to acquire new or improved skills 
by earning a credential.  

• Businesses whose grant proposals represent a significant upgrade in employee skills. 

• The characteristics of the participants in the program, specifically the extent to which 
they historically represent individuals with barriers to employment as defined in WIOA 
sec. 3(24), and how they would benefit from retention or advancement. 

• The employees’ advancement opportunities along with wages and benefits (both pre-and 
post-training earnings. 

• The existence of other training and advancement opportunities provided by the employer. 

• Layoffs averted because of the training. 

• Utilization as part of a larger sector and/or career pathway strategy; or 

• Employer size 
While these considerations do not include an increased reimbursement percentage, 



Page 5 of 10 
MVWA – Retrain & Retain Grant Program 

applications that meet one or more of these conditions will receive priority during 
times of limited funding. 
EMPLOYER’S COST-SHARING REQUIREMENT  
Businesses will be required to provide a portion of the training costs dependent upon the size of 
the business and the number of employees either through direct cost contribution or in-kind 
contributions. 

• At least 10% of the cost for employers with 50 or fewer employees. 

• At least 25% of the cost for employers with 51 to 100 employees.  

• At least 50% of the cost for employers with more than 100 employees. 
The business must disclose cash and in-kind contributions. Examples of in-kind contributions, 
in addition to any direct costs, may include expenses associated with the use of space and 
equipment during the training project and trainee wages (including benefits) of employees 
during the training.  
PERFORMANCE ACCOUNTABILITY 
The employer must agree to provide performance records and keep accurate records of the 
project’s implementation process and certify that all information provided, to request 
reimbursements and report training activity, is accurate and true, including evidence that the 
business has paid the training expenses in accordance with the terms of the agreement prior to 
requesting reimbursement of allowable training costs. During the grant and/or the completion of 
the grant, businesses will be asked to provide the following: 

• Employer will collect and supply all trainee documentation (e.g., proof of SSN, proof of 
citizenship/right to work, and proof of physical address, etc.) to MVWDB (before the 
start date of the training). 

• All training sessions must have signed attendance sheets or digital confirmation of 
attendance. Trainee participation is required. 

• Employee satisfaction surveys 

• The business must submit to MVWDB copies of all credentials, certificates of 
completion, or other documentation of the employee’s participation within 60 days of 
the end of training to be considered eligible for reimbursement. 

• R&R Grant projects require monthly communication with a Business Services staff 
member on the status of the project.  

• Upon training completion, each project requires one year of follow-up to track project 
outcomes (e.g., providing updated trainee wages and promotions).  

• Employers submitting an R&R Grant application are agreeing to provide this 
information.  

ALLOWABILITY OF USE OF R&R FUNDS  
With proper documentation allowable costs for R&R Grants include (but are not 
limited to): 



Page 6 of 10 
MVWA – Retrain & Retain Grant Program 

• Training/Course Registration 

• Instructors/Trainer Salaries 

• Curriculum Development 

• Textbooks and Manuals 

• Materials and Supplies 

• Tuition Expenses 

• Off-site Training Space (e.g., classroom rental) 
Non-reimbursable costs include (but are not limited to): 

• Administrative Costs 

• Trainee’s Wages 

• Purchases of Capital Equipment or Capital Improvement 

• Purchases of items or services that will be used primarily outside of the 
R&R program  

• Travel Expenses for Trainers or Trainees 

• Assessment, Testing, or Certification Fees 

• Advertisement or Recruitment 

• Annual Membership for Online Courses 
TRAINING SERVICES 
The R&R Grant Program provides flexibility regarding the type(s) of training and the training 
provider(s). Based on the needs of the company and its overall workforce development needs, 
the company chooses its training and training provider that provides employees with 
opportunities to acquire new or improved skills.  
Training can include, but is not limited to, industry or employer-specific work skills, basic job 
skills, technical computer skills, new manufacturing technologies, equipment operation 
training, changes in production processes, and skills such as leadership, teamwork, 
communication, conflict resolution, and management skills if the employer can document the 
need and effect on employee production and/or retention with the company.  

Employers will determine and select the types of training and training provider(s) that meet their 
business and training requirements before submitting a grant application for consideration.  
All proposals must show an end date that completes training within 12 months of the award 
date. All training should have specific start and end dates. 
INELIGIBLE TRAINING  

• New hire orientation 

• Degree programs 

• Training that takes place where food and/or beverages are included in the 



Page 7 of 10 
MVWA – Retrain & Retain Grant Program 

cost 

• Training that includes the purchase of equipment (such as iPads or other 
equipment/ supplies/devices that can be used outside of training) in the 
cost of the training 

• Self-paced learning 

• Non skill related assessments 

• Mandated safety training (such as OSHA) 

• Regularly provided annual training  

• English as a second language 

• Basic skills or remedial education 

• Non-job-related training 
ELIGIBLE TRAINING PROVIDERS AND ACTIVITIES  
Public or private educational institutions, trade associations, community-based organizations, 
economic development agencies, unions, government agencies, or subject matter experts may 
provide R&R, and training can be conducted at the business facility, at the training provider’s 
facility, online, or a combination of sites. 
MVWDB CRITERIA  
The MVWDB reserves the right to accept or reject any or all grant applications submitted. 
MVWDB does not commit to pay for any cost incurred before any award notification or the 
execution of any contract. All grant applications and their accompanying attachments will 
become the property of the MVWDB after submission, and materials will not be returned. Costs 
incurred by a contracted entity in the delivery of services shall be reimbursed based on mutually 
agreed-upon conditions and delivery schedules with the submission of appropriate 
documentation. 

Exceptions  
Any exceptions to this policy must be approved by the MVWDB Executive Director in consultation 
with the Business Committee Chair and must be documented in the IWT file and a copy of the 
waiver form saved.  
 

GRANT PROGRAM PROCEDURES 
APPLICATION PROCESS 
Eligible businesses can apply during the time periods listed above until funds are fully expended. 
The R&R Program Grant Interest Form should be completed, and a meeting scheduled to 
determine training needs and eligibility prior to completing the application. The application is the 
only document that may be used to apply for the R&R Grant. Applications should be submitted 
at least 30 business days before the start date of the training. However, submittal within this 
timeframe does not guarantee that the approval date will be on or before the training start date. 
APPLICATION RECEIPT 



Page 8 of 10 
MVWA – Retrain & Retain Grant Program 

The business will receive a notification email that the application has been submitted within 48 
hours. If the business does not receive this, the application was not received. A holiday or a large 
influx of applications may cause a delay in the sending of this email. Incomplete applications 
will delay the approval process, and the application will return to the queue. 
REVIEW AND APPROVAL  
Upon receipt of a completed R&R Grant Application, the grant application will be reviewed to 
determine the employer’s eligibility for R&R funding by board staff. More information may be 
requested from the employer to determine eligibility. The business committee will review all 
applications and make award decisions.  

GRANT CONTRACT 
Once the application has been finalized and signed it will be considered the contract due to it 
containing all assurances and needed information. Within two weeks of the grant approval, the 
required grant documents will be sent to the applicant. Required self-registration on IowaWORKS 
must be completed prior to the start date of the R&R training. Funding cannot be provided for any 
costs for an R&R program that starts before the training has been completed. These forms will 
include: 

• Trainee Data Submission Form 

• Reimbursement Request Form 

• Trainee Roster  

• Training Expense Summary Report 

• Final Training Evaluation Form  
REIMBURSEMENTS  
The first reimbursement can be requested once the has been executed by MVWDB. Businesses 
may request reimbursement as frequently as needed during the 12-month period. Reimbursements 
will be made in direct correlation with the business’s training progress. The percentage of funds 
reimbursed must stay equal to or less than the percentage of trainees that have been trained to 
date. All reimbursements must be submitted within 60 days of the contract end date. 
Reimbursement requests received after the 60-day cutoff will not be processed. Before an invoice 
can be paid, the Reimbursement Request Form must be completed and submitted to the 
MVWDB. Before the final payment can be processed the Final Training Evaluation form must 
be completed.  
CONTRACT TERMS 
The contract will set forth all processes and expectations for administering, implementing, and 
completing the training. If the contract is not executed within a 45-day time frame, the grant 
award becomes null and void unless permission is granted by the MVWDB. In the contract, the 
employer will agree to and assure the following: 

• The business will disclose whether they are currently receiving training funds, 
either directly or indirectly, from Iowa state government. (If an employer is 
receiving training funds from Iowa state government, they are not eligible to 
receive R&R funds as it would be a duplication of funding). 



Page 9 of 10 
MVWA – Retrain & Retain Grant Program 

• Employer will assure they are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for 
disbarment, and declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in 
transactions by USDOL or the State of Iowa. 

• Employer will assure they do not have any outstanding tax liability to the State of 
Iowa and will disclose outstanding tax liabilities with any other state(s). 

• Employer will assure they will not make offers of gratuities or favors to any 
officer, employee, or board member, or to any subcontractor staff of the MVWDB. 

• Employer will assure they have not relocated from any location in the U.S. until 
the date that is 120 days after the date on which business commences operations at 
a new location if the relocation of such business or part of a business results in a 
loss of employment for any employee of such business at the original location and 
such original location is within the United States. 

• Employer will assure that all records relating to activities covered under the R&R 
(Incumbent Worker Training Program will be available and accessible, upon 
request, during normal business hours and as often as deemed necessary by state 
and federal duly authorized representative(s), for the purposes to include 
monitoring, reviewing, verification, audit, and/or investigation. This shall include 
authorization to make excerpts or transcripts from all applicable records. 

• The employer will agree to monitoring by the MVWDB, Iowa 
Workforce Development, U.S. Department of Labor, or other such 
related agencies of training records to ensure compliance with rules and 
regulations.  

• The Employer must agree to not discriminate against any participant 
because of age, race, creed, color, religion, political belief or affiliation, 
sex, national origin, ancestry, or disability. 

• The Employer must agree to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1991, 
Public Law 101-336, or as amended and associated code of federal regulations published 
in the Federal Register as applicable to the Employer directly or indirectly as recipients of 
contracted funds for the State of Iowa. 

• The employer will assure that all employees will receive a copy of the completion record 
for the training that each employee successfully completed. 

LENGTH OF CONTRACT  
Training must be completed within 12 months from the date of approval. From there, the 
company will have 60 days to submit final reimbursement requests for training completed during 
the contract period. 
EXTENSIONS 
There is no provision in the contract for extensions. A business is expected to have carefully 
assessed its training needs so that it will apply only for the funds needed for training that can be 
completed in a 12-month timeframe. 
AMENDMENTS  



Page 10 of 10 
MVWA – Retrain & Retain Grant Program 

If there is an extenuating circumstance that leads to a need to request a change to the approved 
training, the business must contact the MVWDB to discuss the best alternatives. Changes in the 
training(s) may not necessitate a new application, but the business will need to complete an 
amended training form and submit it to the MVWDB as soon as possible. If necessary, the 
MVWDB may convene the grant review committee to review these changes as it relates to the 
purpose of this grant. The training will still need to be completed within the one-year time frame.  
TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE 
The MVWDB staff is available to provide technical assistance throughout the process, from the 
application stage through contract execution, contract management, and fiscal closeout. An 
individual or organization may assist a business or group of businesses in the application 
process; however, that individual/organization may not be compensated with grant funds. 
OTHER TRAINING RESOURCES 
There are additional training programs at the local and state level designed to support 
Iowa businesses by providing training grants. A business can also apply for a State of 
Iowa grant through Future Ready Iowa’s Employer Innovation Fund 
The Iowa New Jobs Training Program (260E) was developed to assist businesses that 
are creating new positions or new jobs. If the company is expanding operations or 
relocating to a new facility in the state, the 260E program can provide flexible 
funding to meet a wide variety of training and employee development needs. 
The Iowa Jobs Training Program (260F) provides job training services to current employees of 
eligible businesses. 

• Helps companies train current employees with new skills. 
• Eligible businesses collaborate with the local community college, which will assess 

training needs, determine funds available and provide training. 
• Valuable employee training for little to no cost 

Other local options for funding include customized training which is designed to meet the 
specific requirements of an employer or group of employers, with the commitment that the 
employer(s) will retain current employees or hire individuals who successfully complete the 
training or an On-the-Job Training grant (On-the-Job Training is training conducted by an 
employer that is provided to a paid participant while engaged in productive work in a job that 
provides knowledge or skills essential to the full and adequate performance of the job) through 
the MVWDB.  Contact MVWDB for more information about customized and On-the-Job 
Training options. 
 

Equal Opportunity Programs/Employer  
Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request for individuals with disabilities. 

 

https://www.futurereadyiowa.gov/innovation#:%7E:text=What%20is%20the%20Employer%20Innovation,developing%20regional%20workforce%20talent%20pools


*RFPs
Reason: Procurement for Adult/Dislocated Worker 
program, Youth program, and One Stop Operator

Documents Included: Will be sent separately

Action Requested: Approve the RFPs



*Meals Per Diem Revisions
Documents Included: Current section of Travel 
policy
Action Requested: Discuss/Propose revisions



MVWA Travel Policy Page 3 of 7 

H. Meals

1. The costs of meals and refreshments are allowable with conditions. However, in accordance
with the authorities cited above, costs can be incurred only when necessary and reasonable for
the proper and efficient performance and administration of a grant award. While the
allowability of such costs is determined on a case-by case basis, it is important to consider:
a. The reasonableness of the aggregate costs to demonstrate that Boards have acted with due

prudence in circumstances, considering their responsibilities to the government unit, its
employees, the public at large, and state or Federal Government.

b. Aggregate costs periodically-e.g., over a 12-month period will be reviewed to identify
needed changes to the policies in order to avoid incurring individual and aggregate costs
that appear excessive or lavish.

c. Tips are allowable up to 20%.
d. No alcoholic beverages are permitted.
e. All meal receipts must be itemized.
f. Reasonableness of the cost of meals will be determined by comparing to the allowable

GSA per diem rate for the specific area.
2. Examples of when a reasonable need arises to incur such costs include, but are not limited to,

the following:
a. Allowable costs of meals incidental to the cost of meetings and conferences where the

primary purpose is the dissemination of technical information.
b. Costs of meals incidental to the cost of meetings and conferences are allowable when the

grantee incurs such costs in the process of conducting meetings or conferences with
external customers and other professional colleagues outside of the entity’s organization.

c. The cost of a “working lunch” with external customers and other colleagues is considered
“reasonable and necessary” when there is adequate documentation on the reason of having
the meeting during mealtime hours.



Hired and Non-Owned Auto 
Coverage Update








	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	MVWDB Retrain  & Retain Grant Program Policy - Guidelines and Processes 2023.07.11.pdf
	Incumbent Worker Definition - An Incumbent Worker is a person who is currently employed and could benefit themselves and their employer by upgrading their skills through training. The training should give the employee the opportunity for advancement a...
	Eligible Employees
	Ineligible Employees
	Employer Eligibility
	Employers applying for an R&R Grant must meet the following criteria:

	Multiple Business Applications
	Ineligible Employers
	Funding Considerations
	Employer’s Cost-Sharing Requirement
	Performance Accountability
	Allowability of Use of R&R Funds
	With proper documentation allowable costs for R&R Grants include (but are not limited to):

	Training Services
	Ineligible Training
	Eligible Training Providers and Activities
	MVWDB Criteria
	Exceptions
	Any exceptions to this policy must be approved by the MVWDB Executive Director in consultation with the Business Committee Chair and must be documented in the IWT file and a copy of the waiver form saved.

	Grant Program Procedures
	Application Process
	Application Receipt
	Review and Approval
	Grant Contract
	Once the application has been finalized and signed it will be considered the contract due to it containing all assurances and needed information. Within two weeks of the grant approval, the required grant documents will be sent to the applicant. Requi...
	Reimbursements
	Contract Terms
	Length of Contract
	Extensions
	Amendments
	Technical Assistance
	Other Training Resources

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	MVWA Executive Committee Meeting Packet 2023.12.05.pdf
	ADP12EA.tmp
	IowaWORKS System Operations
	Introduction
	Purpose

	IowaWORKS System Structure
	Service Design
	Roles and Responsibilities
	Chief Lead Elected Official (CLEO)0F
	Local Workforce Development Board1F
	One Stop Operator2F
	IowaWORKS Partners3F

	Required Partner Services
	Methods for providing access to each of the required services:
	Basic Career Services
	Individualized Career Services
	Training Services
	Follow up Services
	Youth Services
	Business Services


	Referrals
	Accessibility
	Outreach
	Data Sharing
	Monitoring
	Dispute Resolution

	Terms and Conditions
	Confidentiality
	Non-Discrimination and Equal Opportunity
	Indemnification
	Severability
	Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace
	Certification Regarding Lobbying
	Debarment and Suspension
	Priority of Service
	Buy American Provision
	Salary, Compensation, and Bonus Limitations
	Non- Assignment
	Governing Law
	Amendment/ Modification
	Termination
	Effective Period

	One-Stop Operating Budget
	One-Stop Operating Budget
	Cost Allocation Methodology
	Allocation Bases per Cost Item
	Partner Contribution Amounts
	Cost Reconciliation and Allocation Base Update

	Infrastructure Funding Agreement
	Partners
	Infrastructure Budget
	Cost Allocation Methodology
	Cost Reconciliation and Allocation Base Update
	Steps to Reach Consensus
	Notification of Partners
	Kickoff Meeting
	Negotiations
	Draft MOU
	Review and Comment
	Finalized Draft

	Dispute and Impasse Resolution
	Step 1: Notice of failure to reach consensus given to Governor.
	Step 2: Negotiation materials provided to Governor.
	Step 3: Governor Determinations and Calculations
	Step 4: IFA Execution

	Amendment/Modification Process
	Effective Period

	MOU and IFA Attachments
	Attachment A-1: IowaWORKS Office Locations
	Attachment A-2: Partners’ Other Locations in the MVWA
	Attachment B: Partners/ Parties to this Agreement
	Attachment C: Partner Services List
	Basic Career Services
	Individualized Career Services
	Follow Up Services
	Training Services
	Youth Services
	Business Services

	Attachment C-1: Career Services
	Attachment C-2: Training Services
	Attachment C-3: Youth Services
	Attachment C-4: Business Services
	Attachment C-5: Services not in Comprehensive or Affiliate Locations
	Attachment D: Referral Process
	Attachment E: Accessibility Plan
	Attachment F: Outreach Plan
	Attachment G: Data Sharing Training Plan
	Attachment H: Dispute Resolution Process Remove
	Attachment I: Amendment/ Modification Process
	Attachment J: Termination Process
	Attachment K: Business Services Plan
	Attachment L: Negotiations/ Meeting Summary
	Attachment M: IFA Analysis Excel Document

	Signature Page
	Definitions

	ADP13C4.tmp
	IowaWORKS System Operations
	Introduction
	Purpose

	IowaWORKS System Structure
	Service Design
	Roles and Responsibilities
	Chief Lead Elected Official (CLEO)0F
	Local Workforce Development Board1F
	One Stop Operator2F
	IowaWORKS Partners3F

	Required Partner Services
	Methods for providing access to each of the required services:
	Basic Career Services
	Individualized Career Services
	Training Services
	Follow up Services
	Youth Services
	Business Services


	Referrals
	Accessibility
	Outreach
	Data Sharing
	Monitoring
	Dispute Resolution

	Terms and Conditions
	Confidentiality
	Non-Discrimination and Equal Opportunity
	Indemnification
	Severability
	Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace
	Certification Regarding Lobbying
	Debarment and Suspension
	Priority of Service
	Buy American Provision
	Salary, Compensation, and Bonus Limitations
	Non- Assignment
	Governing Law
	Amendment/ Modification
	Termination
	Effective Period

	One-Stop Operating Budget
	One-Stop Operating Budget
	Cost Allocation Methodology
	Allocation Bases per Cost Item
	Partner Contribution Amounts
	Cost Reconciliation and Allocation Base Update

	Infrastructure Funding Agreement
	Partners
	Infrastructure Budget
	Cost Allocation Methodology
	Cost Reconciliation and Allocation Base Update
	Steps to Reach Consensus
	Notification of Partners
	Kickoff Meeting
	Negotiations
	Draft MOU
	Review and Comment
	Finalized Draft

	Dispute and Impasse Resolution
	Step 1: Notice of failure to reach consensus given to Governor.
	Step 2: Negotiation materials provided to Governor.
	Step 3: Governor Determinations and Calculations
	Step 4: IFA Execution

	Amendment/Modification Process
	Effective Period

	MOU and IFA Attachments
	Attachment A-1: IowaWORKS Office Locations
	Attachment A-2: Partners’ Other Locations in the MVWA
	Attachment B: Partners/ Parties to this Agreement
	Attachment C: Partner Services List
	Basic Career Services
	Individualized Career Services
	Follow Up Services
	Training Services
	Youth Services
	Business Services

	Attachment C-1: Career Services
	Attachment C-2: Training Services
	Attachment C-3: Youth Services
	Attachment C-4: Business Services
	Attachment C-5: Services not in Comprehensive or Affiliate Locations
	Attachment D: Referral Process
	Attachment E: Accessibility Plan
	Attachment F: Outreach Plan
	Attachment G: Data Sharing Training Plan
	Attachment H: Dispute Resolution Process Remove
	Attachment I: Amendment/ Modification Process
	Attachment J: Termination Process
	Attachment K: Business Services Plan
	Attachment L: Negotiations/ Meeting Summary
	Attachment M: IFA Analysis Excel Document

	Signature Page
	Definitions

	ADP882C.tmp
	IowaWORKS System Operations
	Introduction
	Purpose

	IowaWORKS System Structure
	Service Design
	Roles and Responsibilities
	Chief Lead Elected Official (CLEO)0F
	Local Workforce Development Board1F
	One Stop Operator2F
	IowaWORKS Partners3F

	Required Partner Services
	Methods for providing access to each of the required services:
	Basic Career Services
	Individualized Career Services
	Training Services
	Follow up Services
	Youth Services
	Business Services


	Referrals
	Accessibility
	Outreach
	Data Sharing
	Monitoring
	Dispute Resolution

	Terms and Conditions
	Confidentiality
	Non-Discrimination and Equal Opportunity
	Indemnification
	Severability
	Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace
	Certification Regarding Lobbying
	Debarment and Suspension
	Priority of Service
	Buy American Provision
	Salary, Compensation, and Bonus Limitations
	Non- Assignment
	Governing Law
	Amendment/ Modification
	Termination
	Effective Period

	One-Stop Operating Budget
	One-Stop Operating Budget
	Cost Allocation Methodology
	Allocation Bases per Cost Item
	Partner Contribution Amounts
	Cost Reconciliation and Allocation Base Update

	Infrastructure Funding Agreement
	Partners
	Infrastructure Budget
	Cost Allocation Methodology
	Cost Reconciliation and Allocation Base Update
	Steps to Reach Consensus
	Notification of Partners
	Kickoff Meeting
	Negotiations
	Draft MOU
	Review and Comment
	Finalized Draft

	Dispute and Impasse Resolution
	Step 1: Notice of failure to reach consensus given to Governor.
	Step 2: Negotiation materials provided to Governor.
	Step 3: Governor Determinations and Calculations
	Step 4: IFA Execution

	Amendment/Modification Process
	Effective Period

	MOU and IFA Attachments
	Attachment A-1: IowaWORKS Office Locations
	Attachment A-2: Partners’ Other Locations in the MVWA
	Attachment B: Partners/ Parties to this Agreement
	Attachment C: Partner Services List
	Basic Career Services
	Individualized Career Services
	Follow Up Services
	Training Services
	Youth Services
	Business Services

	Attachment C-1: Career Services
	Attachment C-2: Training Services
	Attachment C-3: Youth Services
	Attachment C-4: Business Services
	Attachment C-5: Services not in Comprehensive or Affiliate Locations
	Attachment D: Referral Process
	Attachment E: Accessibility Plan
	Attachment F: Outreach Plan
	Attachment G: Data Sharing Training Plan
	Attachment H: Dispute Resolution Process Remove
	Attachment I: Amendment/ Modification Process
	Attachment J: Termination Process
	Attachment K: Business Services Plan
	Attachment L: Negotiations/ Meeting Summary
	Attachment M: IFA Analysis Excel Document

	Signature Page
	Definitions

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	MVWDB Travel Policy 2022.08.01.pdf
	A. Purpose
	1. Establish a travel policy for reimbursement of expenditures incurred in the performance of duties responsibilities that directly support the mission of the Mississippi Valley Workforce Development Board (MVWDB). MVWDB stakeholders covered by this p...

	B. Background
	1. The Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) allows reimbursement of travel costs incurred in the performance of administrative and program functions. Reasonable travel costs necessary to effectively manage the grant, provide oversight, and ...

	C. Policy
	1. It is the policy of the MVWDB to reimburse representatives for travel expenses incurred in the performance of duties under WIOA. Such reimbursement must meet requirements outlined in the Code of Federal Regulations (CFR).

	D. Guiding Principles
	1. Reimbursement for travel is authorized for official MVWDB and nonprofit corporation business within the budgetary limits established in the annual budget.
	2. Written permission must be obtained from executive director or board chair prior to travel unless specifically related to normally scheduled board, committee, CEO meetings, trainings, or routine MVWDB business within the Local Area.
	3. A travel expense form must be completed by anyone requesting reimbursement.
	4. CEOs can only request reimbursement when travel is outside the state of Iowa.
	5. The completed form should be submitted to the MVWDB executive director or their designee for approval and processing. Expense forms should be submitted no less frequently than monthly. Additionally, all expenses are reviewed by the fiscal agent pri...
	6. The executive director’s expenses for travel outside the Mississippi Valley Workforce Area (MVWA) will be approved by the board chair prior to submittal to the fiscal agent for processing.
	7. No reimbursement will be provided if the traveler receives reimbursement through other sources, double dipping is prohibited and subject to criminal and civil action to recover expenses.
	8. All incurred expenses must be supported by adequate documentation. (Conference or meeting agendas, invoices, hotel bills, receipts, etc.) See 2 CFR Part 225.
	9. Guard against questionable costs by using the “reasonable costs” as the standard for spending. (avoid extravagant meals/hotels for example).
	10. The MVWDB is a fiscal recipient and is the custodian of federal funds, which must be safeguarded and used only for legitimate purposes to perform responsibilities that directly support the mission of the board.
	11. “Reasonable costs. A cost is reasonable if, in its nature and amount, it does not exceed that which would be incurred by a prudent person under the circumstances prevailing at the time the decision was made to incur the cost.” 2 CFR Part 225 Appen...

	E. Mode of Travel
	1. MVWDB representatives are expected to select a mode of transportation, which is least expensive, taking into consideration both time and distance involved.
	2. A receipt will be required for travel by common carrier such as air, rail, or bus. Reimbursements will be for actual costs incurred.
	3. Air travel reservations should be made as far in advance as possible in order to take advantage of reduced fares.
	4. Only the cost of the lowest coach class fare available for direct, non-stop flights from the airport nearest the representative’s home or office to the airport nearest the destination will be allowed.
	5. One checked bag each way for a roundtrip fare is an allowable cost as well as the cost of a carry-on bag.
	6. The use of rental cars should only be used under very specific circumstances and must have prior written approval from the MVWDB board chair.

	F. Mileage Reimbursement
	1. Miles driven should be calculated using the representatives home address as the starting point and should exclude personal commute miles. Return trips should use the site of the MVWDB involved business as the starting point and the representatives ...
	2. The mileage reimbursement rate is calculated to assist with fuel costs as well as wear and tear on the automobile.
	3. The current GSA mileage per diem rate will be used https://www.gsa.gov/travel/plan-book/transportation-airfare-pov-etc/privately-owned-vehicle-pov-mileage-reimbursement-rates.
	4. A Google map showing actual miles must be submitted with the travel reimbursement form.

	G. Lodging
	1. If the event in question is hosted at a hotel, the negotiated conference rate may be acceptable but should be approved in advance by the MVWDB executive director or designee if the rate exceeds the GSA per diem rate for lodging. Tips and room servi...
	2. Representatives traveling on behalf of MVWDB may be reimbursed at the single room rate for the reasonable cost of hotel accommodations. Convenience, the cost of staying in the city in which the hotel is located, and proximity to other venues on the...
	3. Any lodging outside of the MVWA must be approved at least 14 days in advance by the executive director or designee.
	4. The specific location rate will be determined using the GSA rate and adhered to whenever possible. When the GSA rate cannot be followed written explanation of why will be required.

	H. Meals
	1. The costs of meals and refreshments are allowable with conditions. However, in accordance with the authorities cited above, costs can be incurred only when necessary and reasonable for the proper and efficient performance and administration of a gr...
	a. The reasonableness of the aggregate costs to demonstrate that Boards have acted with due prudence in circumstances, considering their responsibilities to the government unit, its employees, the public at large, and state or Federal Government.
	b. Aggregate costs periodically-e.g., over a 12-month period will be reviewed to identify needed changes to the policies in order to avoid incurring individual and aggregate costs that appear excessive or lavish.
	c. Tips are allowable up to 20%.
	d. No alcoholic beverages are permitted.
	e. All meal receipts must be itemized.
	f. Reasonableness of the cost of meals will be determined by comparing to the allowable GSA per diem rate for the specific area.

	2. Examples of when a reasonable need arises to incur such costs include, but are not limited to, the following:
	a. Allowable costs of meals incidental to the cost of meetings and conferences where the primary purpose is the dissemination of technical information.
	b. Costs of meals incidental to the cost of meetings and conferences are allowable when the grantee incurs such costs in the process of conducting meetings or conferences with external customers and other professional colleagues outside of the entity’...
	c. The cost of a “working lunch” with external customers and other colleagues is considered “reasonable and necessary” when there is adequate documentation on the reason of having the meeting during mealtime hours.


	I. Miscellaneous Reimbursements:
	1. Like all disbursements of WIOA funds, reimbursements should be adequately documented, reasonable, directly or indirectly allocable to one or more grants.
	2. Miscellaneous expenses are those deemed necessary in the conduct of the official business of the MVWDB, which are not included in the categories of mode of travel, lodging, mileage, and meals.
	a. All miscellaneous expenses shall be claimed under the column heading "miscellaneous expense" on the travel form and be supported by sufficient documentation.
	b. A receipt for each and every transaction involving miscellaneous expenditures shall be provided.
	c. Receipts are required for such things as:
	i. admission tickets
	ii. registration receipts
	iii. parking/taxi fees
	iv. stamp purchases
	v. supplies
	vi. telephone calls


	3. Some of the more common miscellaneous expenses are:
	a. Fax Copies - Expenses incurred to send or receive information via fax for business purposes shall be allowed. An actual receipt must be attached to the travel payment.
	b. Purchase of Supplies - The purchase of stationery and all other similar supplies shall be allowed in emergencies warranting their use for handling of official business on official travel and shall be submitted and certified on a travel payment with...
	c. Collision Damage Insurance - When renting an auto for MVWDB business, collision damage insurance paid to the auto rental company is an allowable expense. To receive reimbursement, the actual receipt must be attached to the travel claim.
	d. Laundry and Dry Cleaning - Reasonable laundry and dry-cleaning expense is allowed when the employee's travel exceeds five (5) working days. Actual receipt or documentation on the hotel bill must be attached to the travel claim when it is the hotel ...
	e. Internet Access - Internet access charges shall include an explanation for the business purpose on the claim.
	f. Cost of shuttle or Uber/Lyft services to and from the airport or the cost of airport parking
	g. Taxi services, Uber, Tolls, garage, and parking fees as a result of conducting WIOA business are reimbursable with receipt.


	J. Credit Card Usage
	1. MVWDB staff have the authority to use the MVWDB credit card while on business travel as long as the expenditures are within the guidelines outlined in this document and receipts are provided.
	2. Should receipts not be furnished to MVWDB the staff will reimburse MVWDB for the associated costs within 30 days. .
	3. When booking lodging, travel, conference fees, and other miscellaneous purchases, it may be necessary to use the MVWDB credit card. After written approval is received from the executive director for such expenses, the employee will be authorized to...
	4. It is imperative that the employee obtain a receipt at the time of purchase or at point of receiving the service.
	a. That receipt will be given to the Executive Director so he/she will be able to verify the credit card charges.
	b. Upon verification of all charges the executive director will include all receipts when submitting the credit card bill to the fiscal agent for payment requests.


	K. Travel Request Process and Procedure
	1. Expenses will not be reimbursed unless the representative requesting reimbursement submits a written Expense Report.
	2. The Expense Report, which shall be submitted at least monthly or within two weeks of the completion of travel, if travel expense reimbursement is requested, must include:
	a. The representatives name.
	b. If reimbursement for travel is requested, the date, origin, destination, and purpose of the trip, including a description of each MVWDB related activity during the trip.
	c. The name and affiliation of all people for whom expenses are claimed (i.e., people on whom money is spent in order to conduct MVWDB business.
	d. An itemized list of all expenses for which reimbursement is requested.

	3. Any delays in submission will cause delays in processing and timelines may be extended.
	4. Board chair/board staff will verify the travel expense form to receipts and approve for processing within 5 business days.
	5. Board staff will email travel expense form to the Fiscal Agent for processing.
	6. All travel expense form payments will be processed and paid by the Fiscal Agent within 30 days of receipt.

	L. Non-Reimbursable Expenditures
	1. MVWDB maintains a strict policy that expenses in any category that could be perceived as lavish or excessive will not be reimbursed, as such expenses are inappropriate for reimbursement under federal grants and a nonprofit, charitable organization.
	2. Expenses that are not reimbursable include, but are not limited to:
	a. Travel insurance.
	b. First class tickets or upgrades.
	c. Limousine travel.
	d. Movies, liquor, or bar costs.
	e. Spa or exercise charges.
	f. Clothing purchases.
	g. Valet service / car washes.
	h. Toiletry articles.
	i. Expenses for spouses, friends, or relatives.


	M. Personal Travel
	1. Representatives traveling on behalf of MVWDB may incorporate personal travel or business with their MVWDB related trips; however, personnel shall not arrange MVWDB travel at a time that is less advantageous to MVWDB or involving greater expense to ...
	2. Any additional expenses incurred as a result of personal travel, including but not limited to extra hotel nights, additional stopovers, meals or transportation, are the sole responsibility of the representative and will not be reimbursed by MVWDB.
	3. Expenses associated with travel of a representatives spouse, family or friends will not be reimbursed by MVWDB. When combining personal and business travel it should be clearly identified on the travel expense form required.

	N. Reasonable Accommodations
	1. The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and the Americans with Disabilities Act Amendments Act (ADAAA)—as well as relevant state law—require employers to provide reasonable accommodations to allow qualified individuals with disabilities to perfor...


	Blank Page
	ADP6A8C.tmp
	Mississippi Valley

	Blank Page
	ADPC61B.tmp
	Sheet1

	Blank Page
	ADPE827.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADPDFF2.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADP97EA.tmp
	Sheet1





